
 

1 
 

TOWN OF HOLDERNESS 
Zoning Board of Adjustment 

 
Regular Meeting Minutes February 12, 2019 

 

Members Present: Robert Maloney, Chairman; Bill Zurhellen, Vice Chair; Kristen Fuller, Member; Eric 

MacLeish, Member; Jude Ruhm, Member 

Members Absent: none 

Staff Present:  Linda Levy, Land Use Assistant 

Others Present:  Anne Field, Walter Field, Travis Elliott, Thomas Michel, Sara M. Lewis, Alice Field, 

Patrick Kane, Alan M. Barnard, Matt B. Barnard 

CALL TO ORDER:  

The meeting was called to order at 6:15 P.M. A roll call of the members was taken and a quorum was 

present. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  May 8, 2018 

MOTION: “To approve the minutes of the July 10 2018 meeting as written.” 

 Motion:  E. MacLeish 

 Second:  K. Fuller 

 Discussion:   

 Motion Passed: 5 – Yes, 0 – No 

NEW APPLICATIONS: 

Case #428-02-19: Application submitted by Thomas Duffield as agent for Frank Jones for the property 

located at 180 Shephard Hill Rd. identified as Tax Map #241-018-000 in the General Residential District, 

Town of Holderness, for Variances to the degree necessary from Article 400.8.2 (Minimum Septic Setback) 

and the installation of an upgraded septic system. 

 The agent for this case has asked for a continuance to the March 12, 2109 meeting. 

 

Case #429-02-19: Application submitted by Thomas Duffield as agent for Virginia Connor for the property 

located at 565 US Rt. 3. identified as Tax Map #241-122-000 in the General Residential District, Town of 

Holderness, for Variances to the degree necessary from Article 400.8.1 and 400.8.2 (Minimum Septic 

Setback) and the installation of an upgraded septic system. 

 The agent for this case has asked for a continuance to the March 12, 2109 meeting. 

 



 

2 
 

Case #430-02-19: Application submitted by Patrick Kane as agent for Bluebird Realty Trust for the property 

located at 71 Finisterre Rd. identified as Tax Map #235-009-000 in the General Residential District, Town 

of Holderness, for Variances to the degree necessary from Article 400.8.1 and 400.8.2 (Minimum Septic 

and Well Setback) and the installation of an upgraded septic system, and a Variance from Article 400.8.1.1 

(Minimum Side Setback). 

B. Maloney opened the hearing at 6:16 and asked the applicant to begin his presentation. 

P. Kane introduce the engineers. 

M. Barnard described the lot, explained the septic system and how it will work, acknowledging that the 

placement is nonconforming. The placement can meet state standards, but not the town standards. The 

septic chambers are protected so that nothing can penetrate in or out. Setbacks for the well can meet 

the state setback from the septic, but the septic does not meet the town or state setbacks. The existing 

tank is off to the side of the house, we think. The town requires 35’, but we can meet the state 

requirement of 10’. The town wants the septic to be 75’, but we can’t make that on this size property. 

The well will be drilled, not drawn from the lake. It will be within the setback requirements from the 

septic. He showed pictures of the shed that will be removed and will be replaced by the septic. 

Members of the board asked questions about the elevation, the right of way, and if the neighbors were 

asked about the placement of the well. 

B. and M. Barnard answered the questions. The septic will require 3’ of elevation and the neighbors 

were not notified of the placement of the well. 

A. Barnard showed multiple drawings detailing various parts of the property. He described the impact of 

the demolition of the shed and the addition of that footage onto the house. It will reduce the setback 

impact by 18.5%. 

B. Maloney asked if the house is currently on the property line. 

A. Barnard replied that the chimney is 3” from the property line. 

P. Kane showed an enlarged version of the south elevation. The camp is being replaced by new 

construction. It will have similar volume. 

B. Maloney asked if the foundation is a slab? 

P. Kane replied, yes. He shared that the square footage of the shed will be relocated and added onto the 

house. The volume will be less nonconforming as will the total house. The house will have 2 bedrooms, 

no new bedrooms. 

E. MacLeish commented that there are 4 variances. How does the variance for the addition of the house 

meet the hardship requirement? 

A. Barnard answered that the addition should be able to be a trade-off. 

B. Maloney stated, that’s not true, there will be more square footage. When you build new structures, 

the additional space needs to be within the setback. 



 

3 
 

A. Barnard said the they are taking down the shed to put the septic in. The septic could be under the 

driveway. 

B. Maloney stated that we have the legal authority to let the experts decide on the septic and well. 

T. Elliot was recognized and read a letter from the abutters – see Appendix A. 

B. Maloney thanked Mr. Elliot and asked if anyone else wanted to speak. 

T. Michel provided support of those abutters against the approval of the variances. He explained his 

reasons for speaking. He showed a photo of the property from his porch and explained how the addition 

would impede his view in width as well as height. He calculated a 50-75% increase in the size of the 

building, saying it would diminish his property value. He said that the property owners’ statements were 

false and misleading. He then read his abutter letter. See Appendix B. 

B. Maloney asked Mr. Elliot how he felt about the septic variance. 

T. Elliot answered that he was ok with that variance. 

B. Maloney asked if anyone else wanted to share comments. 

W. Zurhellen wanted to know the existing septic placement. 

M. Barnard said that another designer gave them his best guess from when the previous owners 

(Doggett) sold the property. 

W. Zurhellen said that the septic was pumped frequently and they had water from the lake. It seems 

that these owners want to make a seasonal camp into a year-round dwelling. Is that a change of use of 

the property? 

B. Maloney said that it is not a change of use. 

E. MacLeish asked if the town had an engineer that could go out and check the placement of the system. 

L. Levy commented that the town does not have engineers. 

W. Zurhellen said that the water table is 2.5-3’ in that area causing the septic to be raised above current 

grade, so it cannot go under the driveway. 

M. Barnard said that they are trying to do the best with what they’ve got. 

P. Kane shared that the owner could not be at the meeting, but was listening via telephone. The owner 

would not want to give up the shed. 

B. Maloney explained the options for the proposals. They could table the discussion to have the 

property owner present. There is a real good chance that something could be denied. We want to make 

decisions based on facts. 

A. Barnard said that they could withdraw the proposals so that they could make changes to the plan. If 

we table, we have to keep the same drawings. If we withdraw, we could reapply with new drawings. 

B. Maloney said that in his opinion, something is going to be denied. 



 

4 
 

A. Field shared their history of their property as abutters. Our concerns are with the location of the 

septic. It will devalue our property if we sell. Our house is about 30’ from the proposed septic. There will 

be high decibel levels from the pump, the smell, the increase in grade of 3’ during bad weather, any 

privacy protection that we have now with the shed, the right of way is deeded for parking, walking to 

the adjoining property and bringing in items to the camp. 

T. Elliot reasserted the right of way saying that the septic truck would have to back down the right of 

way and come close to the placement of the well. He also talked about their impression that the 

variances were linked. 

B. Maloney said that the board will treat them as 4 separate variances. 

S. Lewis talked about the conservation values. It impacts the view of everyone who comes down the 

road. People will look at the house. It is great that they are putting in a new septic, but the sound of the 

pump would devalue our property. It will increase the decibel levels that come from the site. It would 

generate noise to us and the rest of the neighbors 12 hours a day, 365 days a year. The owner was asked 

to meet with the neighbors and declined. 

E. MacLeish said that the owner is not here and that is outside the scope of this case. 

B. Maloney said that it is not a criterion for making a decision. Are there any other comments? What do 

you want to do? 

P. Kane said we are going to withdraw. 

A. Field asked if they will have to resubmit everything. 

B. Maloney affirmed that they will have to submit anything that they will present if they withdraw. He 

thanked the abutters for coming and closed the public session at 7:47. 

OTHER BUSINESS: 

B. Maloney asked if there was any other business. Hearing none, he entertained a motion to adjourn. 

ADJOURNMENT:  

At 8:00P.M. the following motion was made: 

 MOTION: “To adjourn.” 

 Motion:  W. Zurhellen 

 Second:  J. Ruhm 

 Discussion:  None 

 Motion Passed: 5 – Yes, 0 – No 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Linda Levy 
Land Use Assistant 



 

5 
 

 



 

6 
 

 



 

7 
 

 
 



 

8 
 

 



 

9 
 

 


